ONEIDA COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS & SOLID WASTE COMMITTEE MEETING
MINUTES

Oneida County Highway Department Conference Room
Thursday, December 4, 2025 8:00 a.m.

Committee members: Present Excused Absent
Ted Cushing Phone
Bob Almekinder X
Billy Fried X
Dan Hess X
Robb Jensen X
Student Representative:
Matthew Carpenter X

Also Present: Lisa Bauknecht/Solid Waste Director, Alex Hegeman/Highway Commissioner,
Dan Gleason/Highway and Brian Jopek/Lakeland Times

1. Call to order and Chairperson’s announcements
Vice Chair Bob Almekinder called the Public Works and Solid Waste Committee meeting to
order at 8:00 a.m. noting the meeting was properly posted and ADA accessible.

2. Approve agenda

Motion by Jensen/Cushing to approve the agenda as presented. Motion carried with student

representative voting aye.

3. Approve minutes of the Public Works & Solid Waste Committee meeting held
November 20, 2025

Motion by Jensen/Hess to approve the minutes of November 20, 2025 as submitted. Motion

carried with student representative voting aye.

4. Public comments
None

5. Future Meeting Dates:
e December 18, 2025
e January 8, 2026
e January 22, 2026

6. November Monthly Vendor Voucher and Budget to Actual Report
Bauknecht explained because of late payments made by the insurance company the
department paid a charge for interest to the company that performed the fire remediation;
however, they were working to have the money returned.

7. Credit Account Application for Wishbone Enterprises
Motion by Jensen/Cushing to approve the credit account application for Wishbone
Enterprises. Motion carried with student representative voting aye.



Public Works & Solid Waste Committee
December 4, 2025

8.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Thermo Camera Quote for MRF Building

Bauknecht reported IT confirmed the cameras were compatible with the current system and
the price was fair.

Motion by Fried/Almekinder to approve the thermo camera quote for MRF building as
presented. Motion carried with student representative voting aye.

Compost Update

Bauknecht reported she had not received any additional information from corporation
counsel nor any quotes for the cost of hauling the material. Bauknecht noted they would not
make the DNR’s spring 2027 deadline even if they began hauling the material now.

Solid Waste Report
Bauknecht noted there was nothing additional to report.

Future Agenda Items
o Compost update

Approve Vendor Vouchers
Motion by Hess/Fried to approve the vendor vouchers as presented. Motion carried with
student representative voting aye.

Invoices Paid and Budget to Actual Reports
The committee reviewed the reports.

Winter Maintenance Policies and Procedures for State and County Highways
Hegeman reported there were issues the previous weekend with some of state highways.
Hegeman explained there were concerns about a lack of maintenance and response
resulting from lake effect snow that was not forecasted and inexperienced personnel.
Hegeman commented every day that week they discussed how they would improve and
make the needed adjustments so it would not happen again.

Fried noted conditions were different all over the county that day questioning if law
enforcement notifies the department regarding issues.

Hegeman confirmed they did not receive any phone calls from either the sheriff's
department nor the Minocqua Police Department that day, however, the sheriff’'s department
reported ice on a couple of roads on other days. Hegeman explained law enforcement was
good about communicating with the supervisors that respond to and investigate those calls.
Jensen commented the DOT has cameras at the intersections of USH 8 and USH 51 in and
USH 8 and USH 45 questioning if the County should consider investing into installing
camera at other locations.

Hegeman reported the new cameras just showed up on the weather app so he emailed the
DOT questioning their plans for additional cameras.

Hess commented snowfall totals vary all over the county questioning if someone was on
call.

Hegeman explained there was a rotating call list of superintendents and foreman noting
even if he does not have his work phone all of the supervisors have his personal number.
Hess commented he thought that it was good practice to always to carry his work phone.

2|Page



Public Works & Solid Waste Committee
December 4, 2025

Fried explained that both he and Almekinder received criticism about the condition of STH
70 noting he had read the response Hegeman wrote to the paper regarding the events that
happened including equipment breakdowns etc. Fried commented he hoped it would never
happen again. Fried added STH 70 is a main east west and even though the state might
categorize USH 51 as a three or four, up here it is a one. Fried noted the state expected
show not to get packed down; however, it seemed there was a lapse from the initial pass
followed by the breakdown before addressing it again. Fried commented he felt the county
was willing to spend the money to make it as safe as possible noting there needs to be a
priority on the state roads. Fried commented he felt the criticism was fare and that Hegeman
had acknowledged the things that could be improved but noted the public did not want to
hear excuses.

Hegeman noted there was snow forecast for almost every day the next week so they were
addressing personnel and equipment availability with extensive discussions daily to ensure
they are ready for the weekend.

Jensen commented that if they increased the treatment to the pavement, they would need to
stay strong as a committee noting their priority was to the road while balancing the
environment.

Jensen commented if you have done what was necessary with the administrative team they
could contact the commissioner when needed.

Almekinder noted there was a large increase to traffic on STH 70 in the last five or six years.
Jensen noted the options of using cameras or paying employees to begin earlier to check
the conditions of various locations around the county.

Fried explained the breakdown, the response of the mechanic and getting another piece of
equipment could have been done in a more timely fashion adding not only is the
commissioner held accountable so is the committee. Fried commented it was important the
commissioner felt he had the support of the committee and was able to communicate to the
committee what he needs in place.

Hegeman confirmed they touch-base with the surrounding counties regarding what they are
seeing, however, when balancing the expectations of the DOT it does not look good when
surrounding counties are not following the rules and going above and beyond.

Hegeman explained the department was down one employee with two spare drivers that
have been in trucks training in addition to the mechanics that were busy fixing trucks.

Hess questioned if Lincoln County used more salt.

Hegeman explained their route is quite long so the Lincoln County operator uses a lot of salt
at USH 8/USH 51 because he might not be back for hours.

Holewinski commented he received a call from the Three Lakes school administrator
regarding how dangerous CTH A was noting the Sugar Camp Town roads were plowed but
the county roads were not. Holewinski explained when the town road supervisor called the
highway department he was unable to reach anyone stating he felt the call list should go out
to all the town crew leads, town chairs, county board supervisors and school administrators.
Holewinski commented there should be a direct line to both the commissioner and the
person on call. Holewinski questioned why only one person was checking the roads when
there are different conditions throughout the county adding he felt there should be four
people surveilling road conditions. Holewinski questioned if the department has twenty-two
trucks and only 16 routes why a replacement truck could not be dropped off.

Hegeman explained several of the spare trucks were in the process of being repaired.

3|Page



Public Works & Solid Waste Committee
December 4, 2025

Holewinski recommended coordinating with the local police departments and the sheriff’'s
department to monitor road conditions.

Almekinder commented he thought the Lac Du Flambeau Tribe owned couple of cameras
on STH 70 questioning if Hegeman could look into accessing those cameras.

Holewinski commented people were concerned about their kids driving to school on CTH A
because they were going to drive too fast since they do not know how to handle an icy road.
Jensen commented if temperatures are well below zero, the sand will just blow off the road.
Hegeman reported there were four new employees and one position open explaining there
will be more instruction and management will do a better job of communicating their
expectations. Hegeman noted two of the new employees do not have routes but have been
out in almost every storm while on regular time learning from the experienced operators.
Holewinski recommended creating a formal training procedure for new hires noting training
with an experienced operator was better than reading a book. Holewinski commented
training should be documented and the operator satisfied with the training and comfortable
with plowing.

Hess commented after completing the training it would be good to have a supervisor ride
with the new employee and then sign off that they acknowledge they understand the
training.

Holewinski explained they needed to document the training adding he would like Hegeman
to work with the HR director to develop.

Holewinski questioned why the department was working a four-day workweek in the winter
noting the department use to work Saturday to Wednesday if there was a weekend storm
otherwise Monday to Friday. Holewinski commented weather controls the department and
not a regular schedule. Holewinski added if the department used too much sand or salt he
felt the County Board would provide extra money for those shortages noting there has been
almost no winter maintenance the previous two years and there must be extra money.
Holewinski continued the expectation is when school starts the roads are safe for the bus
drivers and everyone driving to the schools adding if it takes extra sand, it takes extra sand.
Jensen commented although he could not recall all of the reasons the decision to continue
with the four day workweek through the winter was because of mobilization.

Fried noted it did not matter if they worked four tens or five eights since you call people in if
it snows on Saturday.

Fried explained that Hegeman needed to tell the committee what direction he was unsure of
and then get that direction from the committee. Fried commented the County had never held
back on providing the money to give him the tools to do the job that is expected. Fried
added he was proud to have Hegeman as the commissioner and the message had been
clear they expect improvement with the challenges they have had.

Almekinder commented he felt it was important towns and police departments have a direct
line adding even supervisors could call if there was an issue with the roads.

Holewinski asked Hegeman to contact the Three Lakes district administrator to work out the
problems they see with the bus routes.

Hegeman commented a petition came before the committee and they decided to do some
shoulder paving adding he had already been in contact with the administrator.

Hess recommended contacting Tyler Young to be certain they were calling in slippery spots
noting there were many new deputies.

Cushing commented he agreed and felt as though Hegeman had his direction and they
would keep this on the agenda adding communication was critical.

4|Page



Public Works & Solid Waste Committee
December 4, 2025

15.

16.

17.

Purchase of Tractor and Mower

Dealer Make Model HP Price
Quality Equipment [Kubota M7060 |71 $46,140.44
Riesterer & Schnell [John Deere |5075E 75 $52,616.11
Riesterer & Schnell |John Deere |5067E 67 $50,343.99
Dealer Make Model Price

Quality Equipment |Kubota DM1022 | $14,206.42

Riesterer & Schnell |John Deere |R240 $14,773.98

Hegeman reported the replacement of the 2001 New Holland tractor and mower was part of
the CIP purchases for 2026. Hegeman reported they received pricing from John Deere and
Kubota and were recommending the John Deere as there was already one in the fleet and
the Kubota dealer informed them the tractor was about six months out in addition to an
unspecified price increase after the first of the year.

Hess recommended getting pricing from Lakeland Lawn and Equipment to bring back to the
next meeting.

Purchase of Router

Hegeman reported Sherwin provided pricing for standard router, a self-propelled router and
a router with dust collection, however, the dust collection unit adds three to four hundred
pounds so they recommend adding the self-propelled to the dust collection unit increasing
the cost to $36,000 from $16,450 for the standard router. Hegeman explained based on the
rate the number of hours they would use it they would be in the red so he recommended the
standard router.

Motion by Jensen/Hess to approve the Sherwin Industries router quote of $16,450. Motion
carried with student representative voting aye.

Purchase of Excavator Brush Head

Hegeman reported Fabick provided the quote for the brush head adding they were
recommending the 60-inch rotary mower along with the mesh front window guarding noting
the cost was less than originally budgeted. Hegeman explained the brush head would keep
the excavator working once earthwork was finished.

Motion by Hess/Jensen to approve option 1 with the mesh front window guarding. Motion
carried with student representative voting aye.

Purchase of Ice Breaker

Team Eagle-Raiko Tree Line Inc-BlueGRYB
Unit $37,020.00 |Unit $34,100.00
Tariff $ 6,430.00 [Shipping | $ 2,470.00
Hitch $ 2,600.00 [Hitch $ 2,600.00
Fabrication | $ 4,000.00 |Fabrication | S 4,000.00
Total $50,050.00 (Total $43,170.00

Hegeman reported they were working with Team Eagle on matching the unit so it would fit
on one of the patrol trucks with the hitch noting there would be fabrication cost and the tariff
was an estimate. Hegeman explained they reached out to Blue GRYB, however, they
directed them to Tree Line Inc. who purchased the unit five years earlier but have not used

5|Page



Public Works & Solid Waste Committee
December 4, 2025

18.

19.

it. Hegeman commented since the company that builds the unit was not willing to talk to
them he had concerns over servicing and parts for the unit.

Motion by Jensen/Cushing to approve the Team Eagle-Raiko ice breaker quote for a total of
$50,050 funded through the equipment account.

Motion carried with student representative voting aye.

Equipment Updates

Hegeman reported the equipment fund was ahead of the previous year explaining the
balance was calculated by subtracting the current year’s costs from the revenues and
adding back the depreciation.

Complaint Status Report

Hegeman reported there were more complaints than normal.

Holewinski noted a complaint that CTH A was a sand route questioning if they were going to
change that because of the bus route.

Hegeman commented the committee discussed the route a couple of years prior and
decided they were not going to change anything at that time.

Holewinski suggested discussing the route again.

Hegeman commented they could review all of the county roads again noting complaints that
CTH C was changed from a salt to a sand route. Hegeman explained he drove CTH C;
there was snow on the centerline, snow on the white line and snow in between the wheel
tracks noting the road condition was as it should be.

Jensen commented when the weather was questionable they would recommend using the
school district provided transportation.

Almekinder noted that all of the town roads were sand routes and the all the busses travel
those roads

Holewinski commented vehicles did not travel at the same speed on town roads as county
roads noting young drivers may be traveling too fast. Holewinski explained he received
multiple calls from parents about CTH A with the number of kids traveling to school so the
committee should discuss it.

Hegeman explained if they changed CTH A to a salt route the driver would need to come
back and switch materials for the remaining portion of the route.

Jensen noted if they changed CTH A to salt and the average daily traffic count was the
same as other sand routes they would need do the same for all.

Hegeman commented he would bring back what the county roads are, what the current
county routes look like and average daily traffic noting CTH K and CTH L are the only
county salt routes.

Holewinski commented if a kid gets killed on CTH A because it was a sand route and not a
salt route it is going to be a big problem.

Fried commented if a complaint was received right after a storm it would likely not matter if it
was a salt or sand but that would be different from a receiving a complaint a week later.
Hegeman noted if the expectation of a county road was clear from white line to white line
that changes the expectation of drivers and how the department approaches storms.
Almekinder noted all of Vilas County’s county truck roads in his area were sand routes.
Hegeman confirmed Vilas County has a white road policy that states they do not go out for
less than two or three inches on the county roads.

Hegeman commented would bring back a comprehensive review of all the county routes.

6|Page



Public Works & Solid Waste Committee
December 4, 2025

20. Commissioner’s Report

Hegeman reported:

o They were down an employee at the Minocqua shop

e The crew was cleaning up trees that came down in the storm

e The crew was cutting trees on STH 17 north

e Once the roads clear they planned to work on some mastic on USH 51 and STH 70

e Jensen, Cushing and Fried were registered for Winter Road School and their hotel
rooms were reserved noting the early bird deadline for registration was December 5,
2025

21. Future Agenda Items
e Update on winter maintenance procedures
e Tractor and mower quotes
o Comprehensive review of county routes

22. Public comments
None

23. Adjourn
Meeting adjourned at 9:29 a.m.

Committee Chairman Committee Secretary

7|Page



